
 

 

 

 

 

WAITSFIELD DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 

 

Tuesday, March 12th, 2024 @ 7:00pm 

Meeting to be held in-person and via Zoom 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE BOTH IN-PERSON 

AT THE TOWN OFFICES OR REMOTE VIA ZOOM.  TO PARTICIPATE 

REMOTELY, PLEASE USE THE FOLLOWING LINK: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9190265312      
Meeting ID: 919 026 5312 

Or call: 1 929 205 6099 

 
 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  REVISIONS TO AGENDA, IF ANY 

 

3.  PUBLIC FORUM 

 

4. ANNUAL REORGANIZATION 

 
5. Application #4166-CU by John Morris off 9 VT Route 17, Waitsfield VT.  
Applicant requests expansion of existing conditional use approval to operate a beer 
garden on a mixed-use property consisting of a nursery, various outbuildings and, 
in conjunction with its sister parcel, the future Mad River Valley Recreation Hub.  
The parcel is parcel is identified as #99168.100 in the Irasville Village District. 
 
6.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 27, 2024 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT  

 
8.  DELIBERATIONS  

 

 

Development 

Review Board 

Members 

Duncan Brines 

John Donaldson, 

Chair 

Gib Geiger 

Steve McKenzie, 

Vice-Chair 

Rudy Polwin 

James Tabor 

Jonathan Ursprung 

 

Planning & Zoning 

Administrator/ 

E911 Coordinator 

J.B. Weir 

 

Town 

Administrator 

Annie Decker-

Dell’Isola 

 

Town Clerk 

Jennifer Peterson 

 

Treasurer 

Randy Brittingham 

 

Waitsfield Town 

Office 

4144 Main Street 

Waitsfield, VT  

05673 

(802) 496-2218 

www.waitsfieldvt.us 

 

 

Documents related to the above item(s) are 

available for review in the Town Office, on the 

town website, and via email.   Reasonable 

accommodations shall be provided upon request to 

ensure that the meeting is accessible to all 

individuals regardless of disability.  Please 

contact the Planning & Zoning Office and at 496-

2218 x4 for more information. 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9190265312


 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
STAFF REPORT by J.B. Weir for March 12, 2024 Meeting  

 

Application #:  4166-CU   
Land Owner: John Morris  
Property Address: 9 VT Route 17 
Parcel Number: 99168.100 in the Irasville Village District 
Meeting Dates: March 12, 2024 
Proposal/Type:        Expansion of existing conditional use approval to 

operate a beer garden on mixed-use properties 
consisting of a brewery, vacant restaurant, apartments, 
and an approved recreation hub.   

 
 
A. GUIDING ORDINANCE and POLICY PROVISIONS 

 

1. Town of Waitsfield Zoning Bylaws, as adopted March 2, 1971 and amended through 

January 8, 2024:  

a. Table 2.03  Irasville Village District 

b. Section 3.09 Parking and Loading Standards 

c. Section 4.08 Mixed Uses 

d. Section 5.03 Conditional Use Review 

 

2. Waitsfield Town Plan, as adopted on October 9, 2023. 

 
 
B.  MATERIALS SUBMITTED 

 

1. On February 11, 2024, the applicant submitted Conditional Use application # 4166-CU, 

Zoning Permit application # 4166, Responses to General and Specific Review Standards, 

and an aerial map of the subject properties. 

 

2. On March 8, 2024, the PZA included in the file various site and parking plans from the 

Mad River Valley Recreation Hub (VOREC) project submittal. 

 

C.  PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

1. The 3.7-acre property is located off 9 VT Route 17 and consists of a nursery 

(Appalachian Landscaping), various outbuildings and the future Mad River Valley 

Recreation Hub. 

http://www.waitsfieldvt.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/ADOPTED-ZONING-BYLAWS-9.28.20.pdf
http://www.waitsfieldvt.us/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/Adopted-Town-Plan-2017-2025.pdf


 

 

2. The subject property – along with its sister abutting parcel #99169.000 – has been 

approved for the creation of the so-called Mad River Valley Recreation Hub.  The new 

proposed use is as a trailhead linking to existing trails on private land and the nearby 

Howe Block of the Camel’s Hump State Forest.  Parcel #99169.000 is already a mixed-

use property which consists of a currently-vacant restaurant/bar, brewery, retail, visitor’s 

center, and 4 apartments.   

 

3. Applicant now proposes to expand the existing conditional use to operate a part/time 

seasonal beer garden on parcel #99168.100 which would primarily serve users of the 

recreation hub.  Applicant proposes operation during the warmer months for a maximum 

of 4 days/week and for 4-5 hours per day.   

 

4. Per applicant’s submittal, the only structures to be used in operation of the beer garden 

are an existing 12 x 12 shed and several pop-up canopy tents. 

 

5. Applicant does not propose any lighting at this time given daytime operation. 

 

6. Pursuant to this Board’s decision in application #3567-CU, applicant was approved to 

operate a brewery – Cousin’s Brewing - out of the basement of the existing mixed-use 

building consisting of the restaurant/bar, brewery, retail, visitor’s center, and 4 

apartments.  The Cousin’s Brewing product is what applicant intents to sell for on-site 

consumption in the beer garden.  Minimal food service is also proposed.  Food is 

proposed to be prepared within the restaurant kitchen by a tenant catering service. 

 

7. Pursuant to the decision in application #4137-CU, the Board approved the construction of 

a pedestrian/bicycle bridge on a portion of the property over the Mill Brook within the 

Flood Hazard Overlay District and FEMA floodway.  Constituting part of the recreation 

hub project, the bridge is to serve as access to existing trails on private land and the 

nearby Howe Block of the Camel’s Hump State Forest. 

 

8. Pursuant to the decision in application #4138-CU, the Board approved a request to 

expand the parking on the property by creating an additional 18 spaces and to restore the 

riparian buffer adjacent to the Mill Brook.  The parking was increased to a total of 80 

spaces to serve users of the recreation hub. 

 

9. Applicant submits that most customers will be users of the trailhead/recreation hub. 

Accordingly, any impact to the prior-approved 80 parking spaces is likely minimal.   

 



 

10. Applicant submits that there will be no amplified noise generated from operation of the 

beer garden.  There will be no noise after 9:00 p.m. 

 

11. A public hearing will be held on Tuesday, March 12th, 2024. Notice was sent to The 

Valley Reporter on February 27th, 2024, and it appeared in the February 29th, 2024 issue 

of The Valley Reporter.  Abutting property owners were sent notice on February 27th, 

2024. 

 























Parking

Public 
Toilets

Recreation Hub 
Welcome Center

Riparian Buffer Trail 
Crossing

Mill Brook Bridge

ramp

ramp

Fiddler’s 
Walk

17

100

Waitsfield, VT

Seriously Sharp Way 
Trail (existing)

Rec Hub 
Trail



Mill Brook Bridge

Parking

Public 
Portalets

Recreation Hub 
Welcome Center

Trail 
Crossing

ramp

Fiddler’s 
Walk

Rec Hub Trail

17

100

Waitsfield, VT

Riparian Buffer 
(green shading)

ramp

0.1% Occurrence 
Flood Zone 

(purple lines)



Parking Lot Design

▪ Route 17 is the primary source of runoff flowing onto the Morris property and ultimately into the Mill Brook. The state is talking about 
re-examining the intersection of routes 17 and 100. Any changes are at least several years in the future. For now, the VOREC project 
management team and the property owner would like to reduce the impact of runoff on the watershed without investing a ton of 
money since further work might be required when the intersection is finally changed. 

▪ Summit Engineering of South Burlington 
has been hired to create a plan to reduce 
sediment flow into the Mill Brook and add 
additional parking spaces . They have 
completed a 3D survey of the area, are 
currently assessing the permeability of the 
existing surfaces, and will produce a final 
plan to include:

o excavation

o Addition of aggregate (stone, etc.)

o grading

o cleaning up the swale and installing 
check dams

o parking perimeter landscaping to 
capture sediment and define lot edge

o potential drain improvements for the 
parking areas abutting route 17



Parking – Calculation of Needed Spots

• The building is currently used for a restaurant, bike shop, 4 apartments, and the Welcome Center for the Mad 
River Valley Chamber of Commerce. 

• The restaurant is closed, but a new restaurant in the former Local Folk Smokehouse space will be opening soon.

• The new proposed use is as a trailhead linking to existing trails on private land and the nearby Howe Block of the 
Camel’s Hump State Forest.

• The Mad River Path is planning an extension of the Fiddler’s Walk path which will link directly to this site via a trail 
crossing across route 100.

• New parking space are needed to accommodate the additional use of the site as a trailhead.

Use Requirement Calculation Needed 

Spots

Restaurant 1 space per 4 seats plus 1 space per 

employee for the largest shift

120 seats / 4 = 30 plus 10 employees = 40 40

Bike Shop 1 space per 300 square feet 24 ft x 20 ft = 480 sq. ft.   -   480 / 300 = 1.6 1.6

Apartments 1.5 spaces per dwelling 4 apartments x 1.5 = 6 6

MRV Welcome Center 1 space per 300 square feet 26 ft x 26 ft = 676 sq. ft.   -   676 / 300 = 1.6 2.3

Trailhead Parking No defined rule Lareau Park lot has about 30 spaces 30

TOTAL 80



Parking – Calculation of Existing & New Parking Spaces

• Perpendicular parking 
spaces are 9 feet wide 
x 18 feet long. 

• ADA accessible spaces 
add a 5-foot-wide 
buffer on both sides.

• Parallel parking spaces 
are 9 feet wide by 25 
feet long.

• Areas where 
landscaping will be 
improved and added 
to shield views of 
parking areas and 
improve streetscape 
aesthetics are shown 
with yellow shaded 
boxes.

A4
C11

D3

E11

F4

G14

H13

I8

J10

B2



Parking – Calculation of Existing & New Parking Spaces

• Parking spaces are 9 feet wide x 18 feet long. ADA accessible spaces add a 5-foot-wide buffer on both sides.

• John Morris, the property owner, plans to re-open a restaurant in the Smokehouse space in the near future. 

Parking Space Location Map # Dimensions Calculation of number of spaces Existing 

Spaces

Proposed 

Spaces

Easternmost A 36 ft wide x 18 ft long 36’ / 9’ = 4 spaces 4

Between bike shop and 17 B 50 ft long x 18 ft wide (2 x 25’) = 50’ 2 parallel

In front of Welcome Ctr C 114 ft wide x 18 ft long (11 x 9’) + (3 x 5’ buffer) = 99 + 15 = 114’ 11

Near dumpsters D 27 ft wide x 18 ft long 27’ / 9’ = 3 spaces 3

Northwest corner E 99 ft wide x 18 ft long 99’ / 9’ = 11 spaces 11

Middle tier F 120 ft long x 18 ft wide (4 x 25’) + 20’ extra space = 76 + 44 = 120’ 4 parallel

Existing lower – north G 126 ft long x 18 ft wide 126’ / 9’ = 14 spaces 14

Existing lower – south H 117 ft long x 18 ft wide 117’ / 9’ = 13 spaces 13

Southwestern I 72 ft long x 18 ft wide 72’ / 9’ = 8 spaces 8

Westernmost J 90 ft long x 18 ft wide 90’ / 9’ = 10 spaces 10

TOTAL 62 18





landscaping





























Waitsfield DRB Minutes                                                                                                                             Page  1 
February 13, 2024 

Town of Waitsfield 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 

DRAFT Meeting Minutes 
February 27, 2024 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm, and was held in person at the 
Waitsfield Town Offices and online via Zoom. 
     DRB Members Present:  Duncan Brines, John Donaldson (Chair), Rudy Polwin, Jonathan 
Ursprung 
     Staff:     Zoning Administrator JB Weir 
     Others:     David Cohen, Stephen Gavosto 
 
2.  REVISIONS TO AGENDA, IF ANY 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
3.  PUBLIC FORUM 
Nobody requested time to address the Board. 
 
4.  Application #4165-CU by MRV Holdings off 6971 Main Street, Waitsfield VT. Pursuant to 
Table 2.05 (C) (15), applicant requests conditional use approval to construct two storage units 
(1,800 sq. ft. and 4,800 sq. ft.) on a mixed-use property consisting of residential and commercial 
office space. The parcel is parcel is identified as #99204.000 in the Limited Business District. 
 
Mr. Gavosto summarized the plans for the self-storage units, noting that he has revised his 
design since submitting the application and now plans to use wooden materials to frame and 
side the buildings. 
 
Parking was discussed, and the following points made: 

• Currently the site has 21 parking spaces 

• Three apartments are located at the site, each one requiring one parking space 

• Table 3.1 includes the Town’s parking standards 
o Those standards outline office space needs based upon square footage of the 

building 
o Mr. Gavosto noted that the building contains hallways, utility rooms, and shared 

space such as a conference room 
o It was agreed that a report of the number of tenants would be useful to 

determine the parking needed for the office space 

• There are 10 spaces proposed for the new structures 
o Mr. Gavosto noted that it would not be difficult to add a few more there 
o Mr. Polwin indicated that unneeded impervious space should not be created 

• There is currently an overflow parking area, which can be designated on the site plan 
 

Mr. Donaldson explained that the Board will decide during deliberations what additional 
parking may be required, once the needs of the office space area are better understood. 
 
In response to questions from Board members, Mr. Gavosto noted that electricity will be 
provided through solar panels and that he will determine the color temperature of the exterior 
lights to be installed and provide that information to Mr. Weir. 



Waitsfield DRB Minutes                                                                                                                             Page  2 
February 13, 2024 

 
Tree clearing limits were discussed.  Mr. Gavosto explained that the proposed location requires 
less tree cutting than would be necessary if the buildings were to be tucked behind an existing 
structure, and noted as well that the property is wetter behind the proposed location, making it 
difficult to move the buildings back further from the road.  It was discussed that a landscaping 
plan might include maintaining the existing thicket and other trees rather than stipulating that a 
new landscape plan be developed. 
 
Mr. Cohen was designated as an interested party to this application.  He commented that he 
wants to ensure that the character of the property will not change due to the new 
development, and expressed that he was pleased the design had been revised to be wooden 
rather than metal structures. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Brines moved to close the hearing for Application #4165-CU.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Ursprung.  All voted in favor. 
 
5.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The minutes of February 13, 2024 were amended and approved. 
 
6.  OTHER BUSINESS  
The upcoming schedule was reviewed. 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT  
The public portion of the meeting was adjourned at 7:26 pm to move into deliberations.  
 
8. DELIBERATIONS 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Carol Chamberlin, Recording Secretary 


	1. drb_agenda_2024-3-12
	2. Final Meeting packet for John Morris beer garden
	1. Staff Report for John Morris beer garden
	2. Application and aerial photo
	3. Vorec site and parking plans
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 3
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 4
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 18
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 19
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 20
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 21
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 22
	4. Mill-Brook-Bridge-and-Parking-rev-Jul-3-2023 23

	4. Local Folk Light Industry #3567-CU PDF
	5. VOREC bridge decision
	6. VOREC parkiing decision

	3. DRB-min-02-27-24-draft

